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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: We are now in

          3  session. I will turn to the Chair of our other

          4  Subcommittee, Council Member Sabini, for an opening

          5  statement.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman. We are here today to try and get all

          8  government entities and the franchisee at the same

          9  place at the same time to answer a number of

         10  questions regarding sort of two sides to the same

         11  issue. Number one, the particular interest of my

         12  Subcommittee is how if City franchisee was able to

         13  put structures on the City scape and historic

         14  district without the consent of the Landmarks

         15  Preservation Commission and my understanding is that

         16  you and members of your Subcommittee have concerns

         17  of the overall issue of street furniture and you

         18  have had a strong record on street furniture and

         19  where are we going with the rest of the City on

         20  this. So, sometimes to get everyone to answer the

         21  question at the same time you have to get them all

         22  in the same room and I think that is what we are

         23  doing today.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: It is our hope
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          2  today, as the Chair has indicated, that we can now

          3  have answers given today, and we understand there is

          4  a desire to sort of eke these answers out in other

          5  forums, we are not about to allow forum shopping.

          6  This is the place to tell us today. To tell folks

          7  other things tomorrow, God bless, but you better be

          8  forthright today. This is the type of thing that has

          9  galled us to the nth degree, that in this issue we

         10  have not had as much forthrightness as we should

         11  have.

         12                 So, with that, we will now ask the

         13  Administration's representatives on MOS to come

         14  forward. Sergeant-At-Arms, please accommodate

         15  additional chairs as they are needed. Is the

         16  Department of Transportation's representatives here?

         17                 MR. LISZCZAK: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Would you

         19  please identify yourselves for the stenographer's

         20  benefit.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: Alan Dobrin,

         22  Commissioner of the Department of Information,

         23  Technology and Telecommunications.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Welcome,

         25  Commissioner.
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          2                 CHAIRWOMAN RAAB: Jennifer Raab,

          3  Chairwoman of the New York City Landmarks

          4  Preservation Commission.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Chair,

          6  welcome.

          7                 MR. LISZCZAK: John Liszczak,

          8  Department of Transportation, Bureau of Permit

          9  Management.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Thank you. You

         11  are here in absence of Commissioner Chapman?

         12                 MR. LISZCZAK: Yes, I am.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Tell us how

         14  this came to be where these structures are the

         15  personifications of everything that violates a civic

         16  interest or pleasure have now come to proliferate

         17  not merely in Chairman Sabini's district but now

         18  starting to sprout up in my district, something

         19  which quite frankly has been an aesthetic

         20  displeasure. I think certainly something that folks

         21  have felt are unnecessary that the franchisee had

         22  other opportunities to place these elsewhere, and

         23  what in fact was the review from minute one of this?

         24  Whoever cares to start off.

         25                 Commissioner Dobrin.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: I would like to

          3  do an overall statement.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Fine.

          5                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: I will answer

          6  some of those in that context and other people will

          7  speak and hopefully at the end of it all you will

          8  understand it at least, I don't know if you will

          9  like it but you will understand it.

         10                 Good afternoon. My name is Alan

         11  Dobrin, the Commissioner of the City's Department of

         12  Information Technology and Telecommunications.  As

         13  we just said, I am joined here by Jennifer Raab, the

         14  Chair of the Landmarks Preservation Commission, and

         15  I am also joined by John Liszczak, give or take a

         16  syllable, the Executive Director of Permit

         17  Management of the Department of Transportation.

         18                 I am here today to discuss the

         19  installation of cable television equipment boxes by

         20  Time Warner Cable, in particular the installation of

         21  ten equipment facilities on public streets in

         22  Jackson Heights historically, installations that

         23  were performed without obtaining findings from the

         24  Landmarks Preservation Commission.

         25                 The situation resulted in errors or
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          2  oversights by both Time Warner and the City. The

          3  City's contractual agreements with Time Warner

          4  provide, as they have provided for many years, that

          5  Time Warner will, and I quote, have the sole

          6  responsibility to diligently obtaining at its own

          7  cost and expense all permits, licenses and other

          8  forms of approval, or authorization necessary to

          9  construct, operate, maintain, repair or upgrade its

         10  cable system, or any part thereof prior to the

         11  commencement of such activity.

         12                 Time Warner's unintentional error,

         13  because it was unaware of Jackson Heights status as

         14  a historic district, must be rectified. The City's

         15  own error in allowing street opening permits to be

         16  issued for those installations without the

         17  appropriate landmarks approvals must also be

         18  rectified, and new procedures are being put into

         19  place to make sure this does not occur again.

         20                 In the aftermath of these errors, two

         21  tasks must be undertaken, and in fact pursuit of

         22  these two tasks is now underway.

         23                 First, we have told Time Warner to

         24  move the inadequately approved installations in a

         25  manner consistent with historic district
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          2  requirements and thus with the aesthetic historical

          3  and architectural context of the Jackson Heights

          4  location, and to do so in a manner which does not

          5  compromise in any respect the cable television or

          6  telecommunication services Time Warner provides and

          7  must provide through the Jackson Heights community.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Commissioner,

          9  just before you move to the second point, what is

         10  the time frame that is to be accomplished?

         11                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: We are working

         12  with them closely, they are working with them every

         13  day on it. We are speaking with them regularly. I

         14  thought about this a lot and I don't want to have

         15  anything on the table now that says that some point

         16  we will do things that will take service away from

         17  the people in Jackson Heights. As long as we are

         18  working and finding more sites --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Will it be

         20  under five weeks? Will it be under six months? I

         21  mean a general time frame.

         22                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: It will

         23  certainly be under six months.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Certainly

         25  under six months.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: And I would

          3  think considerably under six months.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Does that mean

          5  three months? I would be happy with three months,

          6  Commissioner.

          7                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: I can go through

          8  it, if you think it answers it, but I did write it

          9  and I spent a lot of time on it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Continue.

         11  Please do.

         12                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: And I would feel

         13  bad if I didn't read it, and my secretary would feel

         14  bad.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Go ahead.

         16                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: Second, the City

         17  has taken action, both short and long-term, to

         18  ensure the permits are never again issued for this

         19  type of facility in any historic district, without

         20  the appropriate Landmarks review.

         21                 John Liszczak is here to talk to you

         22  about that aspect of the issue with you.

         23                 Let me return first, though, to

         24  describe the nature of our direction of Time Warner

         25  to cure the situation.
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          2                 Our overriding goal in this effort is

          3  to make the Jackson Heights Community whole. Our

          4  highest priority and the solution that we consider

          5  best is for Time Warner to move the inadequately

          6  approved facilities and to reinstall them in

          7  locations so they have no impact on the historical,

          8  architectural or aesthetic context of the district.

          9                 It is our understanding that of the

         10  ten locations in question, Time Warner has already

         11  found with the help of the community a number of

         12  alternative locations, and we have instructed Time

         13  Warner to use every effort to locate similar

         14  alternative locations for all other facilities.

         15                 If despite every effort to find such

         16  alternative locations, such locations cannot be

         17  found for some of the remaining facilities, only

         18  then should other solutions be considered for the

         19  remaining installations.

         20                 If there are such remaining

         21  installations, we work with Time Warner on

         22  relocation to locations that are off-street, where

         23  the impact on the community and the historic

         24  streetscape can be eliminated and minimized.

         25                 Locations set back on private
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          2  property, hidden behind buildings, plantings or

          3  other structures in a manner which protects the

          4  aesthetics of the historic neighborhood may be

          5  appropriate for this purpose.

          6                 We believe that the current problem

          7  can be cured by thus relocating to indoor areas, or

          8  if necessary, to outdoor locations set back behind

          9  private property.

         10                 If for some unforeseeable reason not

         11  every one of the ten inadequately approved

         12  facilities can be relocated indoors or behind

         13  private property, Time Warner will be expected to

         14  take the further step of working with the Landmarks

         15  Commission to find both the new design that is

         16  maximally consistent with the historic and aesthetic

         17  values of the district and a new location that

         18  minimizes any possible negative impact on the

         19  district.

         20                 This approach, however, will only be

         21  utilized as a last resort, if despite every effort

         22  indoor or outdoor street locations -- off-street

         23  locations cannot be found.

         24                 Our overriding goals throughout the

         25  process are and will be:
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          2                 1) To ensure a complete cure of the

          3  noncompliance with the Landmarks law requirements.

          4                 2) To assure that such cure is also

          5  no greater impact on the historic district and if

          6  proper compliance had occurred in the first place.

          7                 3) To assure the Jackson Heights

          8  community receives the same level of cable

          9  television and telecommunication services from Time

         10  Warner as other communities receive.

         11                 4) To assure that the noncompliance

         12  that occurred in this case never happens again.

         13                 Each of these goals is critically

         14  important and each will be pursued to the fullest

         15  without compromising any of the others.

         16                 In addition to a specific problem of

         17  the installation in the historic district, concerns

         18  have also been raised about the installation of

         19  equipment boxes on City streets outside historic

         20  districts.

         21                 In reviewing this issue it has become

         22  clear that the installation of such boxes is part of

         23  a broader issue regarding utility boxes on city

         24  streets generally. Bell Atlantic, Con Ed and other

         25  utilities in addition to Time Warner have been
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          2  installing and using equipment boxes similar to Time

          3  Warner on City streets for many years.

          4                 Traditionally such utility boxes have

          5  not been reviewed from an aesthetic design or

          6  consistent streetscape point of view.

          7                 Until recently, such an approach has

          8  not created significant concerns or objections.

          9  However, in light of the concerns that have been

         10  raised with respect to the most recent installation,

         11  at the request of the Deputy Mayor for Operations,

         12  we, along with the Department of City Planning, DOT

         13  and other relevant City agencies, will undertake a

         14  review of the entire utility box issue and its

         15  impact Citywide.

         16                 We will of course keep the Council up

         17  to date on the progress of this broader project.

         18                 I want to thank the Council and the

         19  Committee and its chairs for demonstrating the depth

         20  of concern of the community on this issue,

         21  parenthetically, in truth I don't think we would

         22  have known how important this was without the

         23  Council's involvement, and that is appreciated,

         24  because I think it is a serious issue in general,

         25  Jackson Heights but also in general.
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          2                 As Chairperson Sabini knows, a

          3  meeting is being scheduled tomorrow in Borough

          4  President Shulman's Office, where Time Warner will

          5  present details of the program today, including the

          6  status of individual sites.

          7                 We look forward to continuing to work

          8  with you and with the affected communities to

          9  implement a complete final and satisfactory

         10  resolution of this issue.

         11                 Thank you for your patience.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Commissioner,

         13  first of all, you have done yourself proud, your

         14  secretary should be beaming, she did a very good job

         15  with that.

         16                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: And Chairman

         18  Sabini does deserve the credit for really focusing

         19  the attention on this issue.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: He does.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Let me just

         22  ask you, in terms of the review of the boxes on the

         23  Citywide basis that the Deputy Mayor has

         24  promulgated, what is the time frame for that review

         25  to be complete?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: I had the

          3  meeting with the Deputy Mayor this week, and I spoke

          4  to him about the problem. I have been riding through

          5  neighborhoods, looking to see how prevalent the Time

          6  Warner boxes in, and I am finding in Bell Atlantic,

          7  in Con Ed, I am finding boxes I can't even identify.

          8  So, he agreed with me this was a serious issue, and

          9  he asked me to put together, you know, to have a

         10  meeting with the affected agencies. After that first

         11  meeting, I can't do a time frame until I at least

         12  have the first meeting with them.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Understood.

         14  Okay, fine. Thank you.

         15                 Chairman Sabini.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Commissioner

         17  Dobrin, I appreciate your testimony and, frankly,

         18  some of the candid things you said, because it took

         19  awhile to get people to admit that what happened

         20  here was sort of a malfeasance, and you also I think

         21  portrayed it correctly that while there is a lot of

         22  blame to go around, the City ultimately is supposed

         23  to be arber of its own rules and if the franchisee

         24  did something to break the rules, it was up to the

         25  City to tell the franchisee it broke the rules and
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          2  up until now we really had not.

          3                 In outlining what you see as the plan

          4  to eliminate the boxes within the historic district

          5  of Jackson Heights, you outline several steps, and I

          6  assume we are going to hear from the franchisee

          7  later, but sort of the last catchall is the one that

          8  troubles me a little bit.

          9                 Where do we go when we don't have

         10  space to put these indoors. You have pledged to have

         11  them removed, and what is the time frame on that?

         12  And has the franchisee been apprised that you mean

         13  business in doing that?

         14                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: What I would

         15  like to do, and I know I need your indulgence for

         16  this, is at this point I want the solution to be

         17  that everyone gets the service, they are in places

         18  that restore the community.

         19                 I am personally now spending more

         20  time on this issue than I am on Y2K. Now you may

         21  think that is a terrible priority, but that is the

         22  truth. So, we are very, very focused on it and we

         23  are going to keep meeting, we are going to keep you

         24  informed regularly box by box, when it is gone.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Right.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: I don't want to

          3  say what our options are and the end degree, if it

          4  doesn't work, because I expect it to work, because I

          5  think that is going to make it less likely it is

          6  going to work.

          7                 So, the answer right now is we are

          8  going to work regularly. If you want, you know, you

          9  and me can talk every single week about the

         10  progress, and we will do it box by box until it goes

         11  away. And at the end of that, if at some point we

         12  realize there is no more progress that can be made,

         13  then we will have another discussion for the time

         14  frame.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Commissioner,

         16  there are probably thousands of people on the

         17  Internet right now who just watched that on

         18  Crosswalks, who are now saying that Time Warner is

         19  going to be responsible for the Y2K bug because this

         20  was all a big ruse.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN:  Or my poor

         22  priorities, one or the other.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: But in all

         24  seriousness, if this hadn't gotten to this point, if

         25  people had listened and just read the law initially,
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          2  you wouldn't have been in this pickle.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: No question

          4  about that. This is not a good use of my time, but

          5  it is important to me and I will put all the time

          6  necessary to make sure this gets done.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay.

          8                 Mike's concern is mosquitos, instead

          9  of Y2K bugs.

         10                 Chairwoman Raab.

         11                 CHAIRWOMAN RAAB: Good morning,

         12  Chairman. I have no prepared statement. I did want

         13  to make the points, to echo what Commissioner Dobrin

         14  said, that the City as a whole is taking this

         15  problem in a very serious way. We of course at the

         16  Commission are extremely pleased at the attention

         17  that it is getting from the other agency, as well as

         18  from the franchisee. We are also very relieved that

         19  this will not happen again in this historic district

         20  or in any other district now that we are all, the

         21  agencies as well as the franchisee know that this is

         22  not the way that one proceeds with these types of

         23  utilities.

         24                 And in terms of the final how do we

         25  deal with the cable boxes in Jackson Heights and
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          2  other parts of the City, I think it has been clear

          3  to the other agencies and to the franchisee that it

          4  is of course our preference not to have them on the

          5  street, but in terms of the timing that you have

          6  been speaking out, we have also told the franchisee

          7  that if the end of the day we have a process where

          8  if they determine they will remain on the streets,

          9  they need to come to us and that will be a full

         10  public hearing where your office, the community and

         11  everyone else will be allowed to weigh in on

         12  whatever alternative they seek to propose. So in

         13  response to the question you were asking about what

         14  happens if they can all be put inside, that is a

         15  question that the Commission will have to take a

         16  close look at, Time Warner will have to think very

         17  carefully about the proposed solutions and how that

         18  works with our standards of appropriateness, and

         19  that will be a very public discussion where once

         20  again everybody will be able to weigh in.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: When someone

         22  applies for a building permit, the computer flags a

         23  historic district. Now, walk me through how other

         24  agencies get the flag if they are in a historic

         25  district like DOT or DoITT, or is there a new
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          2  procedure? How do we get to this point where this

          3  sort of fell through the cracks and how do we

          4  prevent it from happening again?

          5                 CHAIRWOMAN RAAB: The second part of

          6  your question is easier to answer because now we

          7  understand that these types of cable boxes are

          8  probably something that is going to be a part of the

          9  wave of the future and we have to deal with them.

         10                 For telephones, for example, we have

         11  a very clear, in place process where DoITT and DOT

         12  forward us applications, and they understand they

         13  cannot give permits for phones if they have not been

         14  reviewed by the Commission. And as I think you know,

         15  we are working on standardizing the rules so that

         16  every phone company, with all the new phone

         17  companies, know that phones cannot go in historic

         18  pave-in and near certain street corners.

         19                 It is not clear to me how this did

         20  not get flagged by DOT and that may be more

         21  appropriately addressed to them, but I believe that

         22  in the future there will be a very clear procedure

         23  for both DoITT and DOT to follow, and with the three

         24  of us here at this table, we can say with the level

         25  of certainty that this is not going to happen again.
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          2                 I also think it raises the issue for

          3  all of us about the other utility boxes that you

          4  mentioned and how they should be treated. Is there a

          5  certain size in which they need to be scrutinized

          6  and what is the other utilities plans for the

          7  future, and we will I hope be part of Commissioner

          8  Dobrin's task force where we will be able to help

          9  establish a procedure about what the Landmarks

         10  Commission will review in our historic districts.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Now, one of the

         12  problems in removing these things allegedly has been

         13  that the Jackson Heights historic district has bulk,

         14  that it is wide. It is not that wide, but it is

         15  wider than most districts. Some districts are only a

         16  street, as you know, some districts are half a

         17  block, but there are other districts that have bulk,

         18  Douglas Manner, for example, in Council Member

         19  Abel's district, and I don't think the franchisee

         20  has gone that far with the wiring there, we will

         21  find out I guess. But what is going to happen there

         22  and this is sort of a half a historical preservation

         23  question, half a technology question, what is going

         24  to happen in a place like Douglas Manner or in a

         25  place with a little more bulk? Either Commissioner?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: I think probably

          3  when Time Warner comes up they can probably speak to

          4  the plans for that historical district.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Yes, but if they

          6  are going to come wining to you saying they can't do

          7  it?

          8                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: Well, I don't

          9  know. Let's see what they have to say. If they do,

         10  the answer is not going to be ugly reboxes all over

         11  Douglas Manner. That is not the answer.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay.

         13                 The idea is that we want to learn

         14  from past mistakes and we don't want to be put in a

         15  position where everyone sort of comes in wringing

         16  their hands and we can't do anything because people

         17  have to watch Animal Planet.

         18                 CHAIRWOMAN RAAB: I think you probably

         19  know as well as anyone in the room, Councilman, that

         20  the initial blush is often we can't bring modern

         21  technology into historic neighborhoods, it is too

         22  much of a tension, so therefore the worst case

         23  scenario must prevail. And as you know better than

         24  most in this room, that is usually not the final

         25  result.
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          2                 At yesterday's wonderful article

          3  about the rehabilitation of Radio City Music Hall is

          4  perhaps the greatest example. We had to tear that

          5  theater down because we needed a modern theater and

          6  it would never work and you could never bring it

          7  into the 20th century, and with our assistance

          8  Cablevision has now modernized that theater where

          9  the most incredible 21st century technology has been

         10  imperceptively introduced to this phenomenal art

         11  deco music hall which is now completely renovated.

         12                 And if we can do things like that, if

         13  we can bring back the New Amsterdam Theater for

         14  modern use and Bridgemark and all of the other great

         15  projects that we have worked on in the last couple

         16  of years and air conditioned Grand Central, I

         17  believe that the engineers and the intelligence at

         18  Time Warner will find a way to bring cable

         19  technology into historical districts in a way that

         20  is appropriate for the historic ambiance.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: I agree. There

         22  was also an article in the Times yesterday that

         23  talked about in the rush to secure safety in another

         24  historic district that certain buildings came down.

         25  And what I am concerned is that we have a framework
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          2  of action that allows these things to happen

          3  correctly and not fall through the cracks like it

          4  did in this case.

          5                 CHAIRWOMAN RAAB: And to go back to

          6  your first point, with all of us here at the table

          7  and with Time Warner here also ready to speak and

          8  the community here ready to speak, it is a good

          9  first step to making sure this doesn't happen in

         10  Jackson Heights and in other areas of the City.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay.

         12                 Mr. Liszczak.

         13                 MR. LISZCZAK: Good afternoon. My name

         14  is John Liszczak. I am the Executive Director of

         15  Permit Management at the New York City Department of

         16  Transportation.

         17                 Commissioner Dobrin has addressed

         18  many of the issues concerning the placement of cable

         19  boxes in the streets of the City. I have been asked

         20  to amplify on his remarks, specifically about DOT's

         21  street opening permitting process.

         22                 As background, DOT issues more than

         23  85,000 street opening permits each year. We believe

         24  that our permit management system is highly

         25  successful in balancing the public safety needs of
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          2  the traveling public on the streets and the

          3  sidewalks with the business needs of franchisees to

          4  access, repair and improve their property in a

          5  timely manner.

          6                 As Commissioner Dobrin testified, it

          7  was an oversight that the ten boxes were placed in

          8  the Jackson Heights historic district without

          9  approval from Landmarks.

         10                 Time Warner, as well as other

         11  franchisees, understands its clear obligation to

         12  comply with all statutes and rules regarding

         13  installations in landmarked districts. As an added

         14  precaution, DOT has implemented a policy that all

         15  franchisee applicants are required to certify on

         16  each street opening application as to whether the

         17  work location is or is not in a landmarked district.

         18                 If the site is in a landmarked

         19  district, no permit will be issued until DOT has

         20  received appropriate sign-off from landmarks that

         21  this is permitted activity.

         22                 This certification effort, along with

         23  the continued cooperation from landmarks and DoITT

         24  ensures that such an incident as in Jackson Heights

         25  should not occur again.
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          2                 DOT looks forward to the near future,

          3  when our MOSAICS computer system will have fully

          4  integrated landmark and historic district

          5  information. Our priority has been to assure that

          6  our permit management systems are fully compliant

          7  with the looming Y2K deadline. This has been a

          8  significant task for both my bureau and our MIS

          9  department.

         10                 After achieving this critical goal,

         11  DOT will finish our efforts on automatically

         12  identifying these special districts when all street

         13  opening applications are made.

         14                 Until then, DOT feels that the good

         15  faith efforts of the City agencies and our

         16  franchisees will prevent this unfortunate occurrence

         17  again.

         18                 At this point I will be happy to

         19  answer any questions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: All right, with

         21  the three agencies represented, let me ask you a

         22  couple more items.

         23                 The Subcommittee on Zoning and

         24  Franchises approved a framework for putting, for

         25  lack of a better word, cellular phone technology on
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          2  lampposts; what is going to happen in historic

          3  districts since that is not a street opening?

          4                 CHAIRWOMAN RAAB: Do you have an

          5  answer?

          6                 MR. LISZCZAK: No, I don't.

          7                 CHAIRWOMAN RAAB: Because I know we

          8  have over the last few years looked at applications

          9  brought by the major cellular telephone companies.

         10  They have been coming and most of them have been

         11  able to do it in an appropriate way, but I think it

         12  is certainly a question, if there is more technology

         13  to be coming, that we have to be aware of --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: We just approved

         15  in the Council a whole series of regs, including

         16  some things I believe are going to be on your DOT

         17  poles, and it is not a street opening. So I don't

         18  want to have another hearing where you come back and

         19  say, oh, we just meant poles in the street, we

         20  didn't mean lampposts.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REESE: Councilman

         22  Sabini, my name is Elaine Reese, I am General

         23  Counsel and Deputy Commissioner, and I testified

         24  requesting the authorization.

         25                 As you have heard this morning as to
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          2  the system, or this afternoon, that the DOT has

          3  worked out with Landmarks on public pay telephones

          4  and making certain that when the permit comes in

          5  with the request on public telephones that there is

          6  a coordination with Landmarks. DoITT will also make

          7  certain that where there is a request made of DOT,

          8  prior to any requests being made of DOT for the

          9  installation on a lamppost, that that come through

         10  and that we investigate and make certain that those

         11  are not landmark districts.

         12                 On the current installation on light

         13  poles that do exist, they are only to be on

         14  non-distinctive light poles, and I think in fact

         15  that there are no non-distinct light poles in

         16  historic districts.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: You made that

         18  assertion before and it is just not true. In Jackson

         19  Heights historic district there is very few, up

         20  until now, historic-style lampposts.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REESE: Well, then

         22  we will go back -- all right, the only area --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: So, it is

         24  important that we again understand what we are doing

         25  before we do it, because we don't need to come back
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          2  and say, well, we thought there were different

          3  lampposts. They are not.

          4                 There are lampposts in the City that

          5  are landmarked, we are not talking about those. We

          6  are talking about streetscape in historic districts.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REESE: I

          8  understand --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay. And there

         10  are just standard lampposts in many of those

         11  districts.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REESE: I am

         13  making representation that the same process that we

         14  have put in place dealing with public pay telephones

         15  will be put in place to deal with this issue as

         16  well.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay.

         18                 Commissioner Dobrin, you outlined

         19  what your plan of action was and I certainly

         20  understand that we sort of got your attention now,

         21  it is our assertion that in the franchise agreement

         22  that ultimately you can order the removal of certain

         23  aspects of the franchisee's equipment, if it is not

         24  in compliance with City regulations, and in fact

         25  very clearly in the franchise agreement in Section
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          2  66, it says "The company shall at its own cost and

          3  expense protect any and all existing structures

          4  belonging to the City and all designated landmarks,

          5  as well as other structures within any designated

          6  landmark district."

          7                 We believe you have the power to

          8  remove these things. We don't want you to shut down

          9  people's cable TV to do it, but at the same time we

         10  expect that if the franchisee doesn't act in good

         11  faith, that you will exercise your power to do it

         12  and sort of force their hand because they don't want

         13  to lose the revenue.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: I will do

         15  whatever is in my power to have the franchisee

         16  exercise good faith because the people in Jackson

         17  Heights deserve no less.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay, and that

         19  would include ultimately if you have to remove the

         20  boxes?

         21                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: I think if we

         22  ever get to that point we will have a discussion

         23  about the trade-offs between people who are in the

         24  cable services, the boxes, moving them -- I just

         25  don't think we are at that point yet, but I promise
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          2  we will have a conversation right after.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: I don't know that

          4  we are at that point yet either, because there has

          5  been some movement, and we are happy there has been

          6  some movement, but we want you to know that what we

          7  want you to do, and we are going to use our

          8  oversight power to ensure that the law is complied

          9  with because ultimately the law was violated here.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: I understand

         11  that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Whether it be an

         13  error of commission or an error of omission, the law

         14  was violated.

         15                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: We have no

         16  disagreements.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay.

         18                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: Other than maybe

         19  tactically.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay.

         21                 Council Member Abel, anything?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: No.

         23                 CHAIRWOMAN RAAB: I would just like to

         24  add to that, Chairman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Yes.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            32

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRWOMAN RAAB: That again, prior to

          3  any such action such as that, it is my understanding

          4  that Time Warner would have the right to come to

          5  Landmarks because that is really where the offending

          6  action took place and say can these be legalized,

          7  and again, that is the whole hearing process.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Do you have

          9  confidence that your commissioners would legalize

         10  what is there now?

         11                 CHAIRWOMAN RAAB: I wouldn't want to

         12  go out before them, as you know, and I won't.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: I understand

         14  that.

         15                 CHAIRWOMAN RAAB: But as you I think

         16  know, and I think we are all very clear, and I

         17  certainly am, that we are really not looking towards

         18  these alternatives, but Time Warner has learned to

         19  think about could you design such a structure that

         20  is appropriate.

         21                 I don't know that there is an answer,

         22  that the answer to that is you can, but as with all

         23  such applications we would be obligated I believe to

         24  look at that response, as well as to hear your and

         25  the community's response to whatever alternative is
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          2  put in front of us.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: I wouldn't want

          4  to prejudge your Commission's vote but I have been

          5  around long enough to figure out I don't think this

          6  would pass muster with them.

          7                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: I don't think

          8  anybody wants or expects in the longrun the boxes as

          9  they look now will remain in the same place, nobody

         10  wants it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay.

         12                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: I don't think

         13  the company wants it either.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: And you have

         15  committed this will never happen again in a historic

         16  district, and you have committed that the Deputy

         17  Mayor will relook at any and all the street

         18  furniture aspects of these utilities, I mean that is

         19  what you said --

         20                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: Beyond Time

         21  Warner.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Right. And that

         23  would include Cablevision, Bell Atlantic, payphones,

         24  cocots, whatever.

         25                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: It is a good
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          2  issue. It is something that hasn't come through --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Well,

          4  unfortunately, and if Council Member McCaffrey was

          5  here, as many of you know his Subcommittee did

          6  volumes of work with the former Deputy Mayor Reiter

          7  on street furniture, including newsstands and phone

          8  kiosks and information kiosks and on and on and on

          9  and on and we thought we had this all settled and we

         10  didn't.

         11                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: That is why we

         12  get to go out and do these jobs.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Well, yes, but in

         14  the meantime we don't want our neighborhoods to look

         15  like crap.

         16                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: I agree 100

         17  percent.

         18                 CHAIRWOMAN RAAB: I would also just

         19  like to add, Chairman, that I think just as the

         20  staff of the Commission and for myself, that it is

         21  clear that this is not, as they stand now they are

         22  not appropriate fixtures in the streetscape.

         23                 My point was more directed at is

         24  there some other alternative, is there another way

         25  to do this, if they can't be hidden. And I don't
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          2  know that there is, but that would be something that

          3  we would hear out, whatever application that the

          4  company might come up with everybody's full comment.

          5  My hope is it does not have to come to that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay, thank you.

          7                 COMMISSIONER DOBRIN: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: I am going to

          9  call the franchisee that is here next, Time Warner.

         10  Is anyone here from Cablevision? I know they were

         11  invited.

         12                 MR. ROSENBLUM: My name is Barry

         13  Rosenblum, and I am President of Time Warner Cable

         14  of New York City, and I have a secretary who would

         15  also have her ego bruised if I didn't you read my

         16  short statement, and her computer is not Y2K

         17  compliant, so we are hoping to fix that as well.

         18                 In 1996, Time Warner Cable made a

         19  commitment to undertake a complete upgrade of our

         20  cable systems in New York City to provide our more

         21  than 1 million customers in Manhattan, Queens,

         22  Staten Island and Western Brooklyn with new digital

         23  and telecommunication services.

         24                 A principal goal of our systems

         25  upgrade has been to increase the reliability of our
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          2  service, by removing our existing electronic

          3  equipment from inaccessible locations in basements

          4  and laundry rooms in Queens and Brooklyn. Instead,

          5  we have installed the equipment where our service

          6  technicians can gain 24-hour access.

          7                 A component of the systems upgrade is

          8  the installation of pedestal boxes in areas of New

          9  York City where we have underground cables, but

         10  indoor locations with 24-hour access are not

         11  available for the maintenance of the equipment

         12  contained in the boxes.

         13                 Each pedestal box serves

         14  approximately 500 to 1,000 households. They are

         15  designed to contain new power supplies, as well as

         16  the critical nodes which are needed to convert the

         17  signals transmitted via our fiber optic cables to

         18  the RF signals that are transmitted directly to our

         19  customers' homes and businesses. And the new

         20  equipment also permits the introduction of high

         21  speed Internet access along with a wide array of

         22  digital services.

         23                 As you know, an issue arose earlier

         24  this year regarding the installation of ten of our

         25  pedestals in the Jackson Heights Historic District.
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          2  More recently, there has been some discussion about

          3  the pedestals installed outside of the landmark

          4  area. By this statement, we hope to help you

          5  understand why the pedestals are installed at their

          6  current street locations, as well as the avenues

          7  that Time Warner has begun to pursue to address the

          8  concerns about where the historic district pedestals

          9  are situated.

         10                 The upgrade allows us to add channel

         11  capacity, which so far has given us the ability to

         12  establish a new tier of services, with 14 additional

         13  channels offer to our customers as an optional

         14  service. The upgrade will also improve the

         15  reliability of our system and provide better picture

         16  quality.

         17                 It has also paved the way to

         18  providing additional services through our fiberoptic

         19  network. We expect shortly to launch Time Warner

         20  Cable's Roadrunner service, to provide our customers

         21  with the opportunity for high speed Internet access.

         22  More than 100 new digital services will also be

         23  available very soon.

         24                 As I said earlier, this was all begun

         25  about two years ago. In fact over two years ago, and
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          2  a key component of our upgrade was the removal of

          3  equipment from inaccessible locations. For over a

          4  decade, that equipment was in buildings in Queens

          5  and Brooklyn where we experienced service

          6  disruptions which could not be repaired quickly

          7  because we could not gain access.

          8                 Customers in those buildings were

          9  without service for longer than necessary. The

         10  critical factor for reliability, even with cutting

         11  edge equipment, is access.

         12                 The installation of the pedestals, as

         13  well as the laying of 810 miles of newly placed

         14  fiberoptic cable, occurred in accordance with the

         15  terms of our franchise agreements and pursuant to

         16  street opening permits granted by the City

         17  Department of Transportation.

         18                 In order to place equipment or

         19  facilities on any City property, and in the case of

         20  the ten pedestals located in the Jackson Heights

         21  Historic District, Time Warner Cable followed the

         22  same procedures with DOT that we have consistently

         23  followed under the franchises with the City. That

         24  is, we submitted applications to DOT describing the

         25  work and obtained permits for the work that was
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          2  done.

          3                 We were made aware earlier this year,

          4  that the permits for the ten pedestals in the

          5  Jackson Heights Historic District should not have

          6  been issued before the City's Landmarks Preservation

          7  Commission had a chance to comment upon the proposed

          8  work. Unfortunately that didn't happen.

          9                 Council Member Sabini, along with

         10  other concerned officials and community

         11  representatives, has sought the removal of the ten

         12  pedestals from their present street locations into

         13  buildings or other remote locations.

         14                 We received last month from Community

         15  Board 3 a list of potential relocation sites and

         16  have begun to investigate the suitability of those

         17  alternate locations, as well as other locations

         18  where we have inquired into the willingness of the

         19  owners to allow us to use their properties for this

         20  purpose.

         21                 The alternative sites must also be

         22  technically feasible, which means they must be

         23  within a limited distance from our existing fiber

         24  optic cables, and centrally located to the 500 to

         25  1,000 households served by the pedestal
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          2  installations.

          3                 As of this date we have ascertained

          4  that the relocations are feasible for the placement

          5  of three of the ten pedestals installed in the

          6  historic district. The owner of one of the

          7  properties thus far has agreed to allow us to

          8  install our equipment on the rear of his building.

          9                 Another important consideration is

         10  the absolute requirement that these pedestals remain

         11  above ground. The manufacturers of this equipment

         12  have confirmed to us that the below grade

         13  installation of the equipment is not an option.

         14                 In order to install the equipment

         15  underground, a box would have to be sealed to

         16  prevent the water from penetrating the electrical

         17  component of the equipment.

         18                 However, this would result in

         19  equipment overheating, which would create a

         20  dangerous situation as well as cause service

         21  disruptions.

         22                 The above-ground installation allows

         23  the equipment to be vented, and thus eliminating the

         24  possibility of overheating. ANTEC Network

         25  Technologies, one of the largest manufacturers of
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          2  this equipment, has advised us that the interest in

          3  underground installation of this equipment is not

          4  new, and attempts were made at system designs to

          5  allow below grade installation, all with less than

          6  satisfactory results.

          7                 The issue, of course, is not unique

          8  to New York City. Upon investigation, you will find

          9  that in cities and suburban areas throughout the

         10  country, similar pedestals have been installed and

         11  done so above ground, to provide local cable

         12  customers with the opportunity for optimum services

         13  and Internet access.

         14                 But at the end of the day, if we are

         15  unable to identify additional suitable sites for the

         16  relocation of the remaining pedestals installed in

         17  Jackson Heights, then Time Warner Cable will propose

         18  ways in which the equipment may be redesigned to

         19  address any concerns about their harmony with the

         20  surrounding landmark area.

         21                 In this regard, we have already

         22  retained the services of Richard Dattner, a

         23  well-known New York City architect, who will develop

         24  some design alternatives for those pedestals which

         25  might have to remain in their current locations.
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          2                 For now, however, in response to the

          3  request made by Council Member Sabini and others,

          4  our primary objective is to find suitable,

          5  aboveground sites to which we can relocate the

          6  equipment placed within the historic district.

          7                 We are unable, however, to

          8  accommodate the more recent interest that has been

          9  expressed to relocate the balance of the pedestals

         10  installed in the Borough of Queens. In this regard,

         11  you should be aware that of the 1,695 power supplies

         12  installed in the borough as part of our upgrade,

         13  only 99 are contained in pedestals and the remaining

         14  1,576 are on existing poles. Including all the

         15  pedestals or the power supplies in Douglas Manner

         16  are all on poles.

         17                 Starting in the fall of '96, 1996 was

         18  part of our upgrade, we started to install these

         19  pedestals and that work has been ongoing for three

         20  years now.

         21                 We note that this is not an issue in

         22  Manhattan, because the prevalence of doormen

         23  attended buildings and underground garages in the

         24  borough afford us the opportunity for secure 24-hour

         25  access. Unlike Queens, there is a handful of poles
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          2  in Manhattan on which to mount equipment -

          3  electrical, telephone, power or cable. And so

          4  historically, Manhattan owners were willing to allow

          5  us to install our equipment in their buildings.

          6                 We believe very strongly that we will

          7  be able to find owners who will allow us to relocate

          8  equipment to their properties, and certainly keep

          9  the members of the Committee, as well as DoITT,

         10  totally appraised as we make progress in terms of

         11  removing the ten pedestals.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Let me just

         14  ask you, you used in your testimony, perhaps it is

         15  idly or perhaps it is done intentionally, the use of

         16  the phrase within this district. Tell me why do the

         17  boxes have to be within this district? Why could

         18  they not be located in some cases on Roosevelt

         19  Avenue or Northern Boulevard? Explain to us why they

         20  have to be physically there?

         21                 MR. ROSENBLUM: I will try to give my

         22  best description as a non-engineer. And if I say

         23  something incorrect, hopefully one of my engineers

         24  will say something.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Waving in the
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          2  back or looking rather concerned.

          3                 MR. ROSENBLUM: The whole purpose of

          4  doing this upgrade is to put what we call a node

          5  close to the people it is going to serve. And as

          6  part of that process we run a fiber optic cable

          7  directly to that node. Coming out of the node, which

          8  changes the light signals from fiber optic to coex

          9  signals (phonetic). Why do we use fiber optic? We

         10  use fiber optic because we have eliminated all of

         11  the electronics from wherever the signal is

         12  originated to the neighborhood. In the past we might

         13  have had ten or 15 or 20 amplifiers in a row, so by

         14  the time the signals got to each neighborhood they

         15  were degraded. Certainly they wouldn't provide the

         16  quality necessary for digital services and

         17  Roadrunner.

         18                 Coming out of the node, use your

         19  existing coex cable, coex is very good for short

         20  distances, fiber is very poor for short distances

         21  and it is almost impossible to work with within a

         22  home. So the node needs to be close to the people it

         23  is going to serve, otherwise you wind up back where

         24  you start with a whole series of amplifiers and the

         25  people that are served from that would not be able
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          2  to get either optimum picture quality or any of the

          3  new services we are offering.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Am I mistaken,

          5  though, from what I have been told, that a node can

          6  be under three blocks in terms of length of what it

          7  services?

          8                 MR. ROSENBLUM: It varies a bit based

          9  on the density of an area.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Understood.

         11  Okay.

         12                 MR. ROSENBLUM: So, if I am in an area

         13  where there is a lot of single-family houses, it

         14  could be a little bit further. If you are in an area

         15  where you are serving a lot of people, because there

         16  is an MDU, then it has to be a little closer.

         17                 What we have been doing, and the

         18  reason we have been able to come up with some

         19  locations for three of these now is we reengineer

         20  each one to find out what is the possible maximum

         21  distance that that maximum power supply can be from

         22  the area that it has to serve, so it may be a couple

         23  of hundred feet in one case, it may be 700, 800, 900

         24  feet in another, but it has to be done on an

         25  individual case basis.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Well, that is

          3  why at some point perhaps your engineering staff

          4  could tell us why, and as the scenario that we have

          5  asked about Northern Boulevard or Roosevelt Avenue

          6  would not serve those technical needs in such a

          7  fashion then as to be able to accommodate what the

          8  technological requirements are without the impact in

          9  terms of the district. Because that is something

         10  which does not, as of yet, make any sense to us as t

         11  why they must be physically within. Close to, we

         12  understand that.

         13                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: But the

         15  question is why within.

         16                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Okay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Now, you have

         18  heard Commissioner Dobrin indicate that the

         19  Administration is initiating this policy review of

         20  other locations. Tell us how you are going to

         21  integrate the operations of Time Warner into those

         22  other areas separate and distinct. The areas, for

         23  example, in Sunnyside, we are beginning to see the

         24  boxes now where folks are somewhat concerned. Tell

         25  us how you are going to end up addressing that
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          2  aspect.

          3                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Well, first of all we

          4  are very, very pleased that there will be procedures

          5  that I think that we all agree with as we move

          6  forward.

          7                 In Queens there are only four

          8  potential locations that are remaining where we may

          9  have to request pedestals. All the other work has

         10  been completed.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: I apologize

         12  for being out of the room, did you supply those

         13  locations to the Chair?

         14                 MR. ROSENBLUM: No, but we do have

         15  them. We haven't asked yet.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: You will

         17  supply them to us?

         18                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Yes, we will.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Okay.

         20                 Now, you say in Manhattan, for

         21  example, this has not been a problem because of the

         22  ability to have access to buildings attended by

         23  doormen or by garage locations.

         24                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: So, is the
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          2  garage location acceptable because you have 24-hour

          3  access? That is below grade?

          4                 MR. ROSENBLUM: It is acceptable

          5  because it doesn't flood because the power supplies

          6  tend to be mounted on the walls near the three,

          7  four, five feet off the ground in a garage and we

          8  have 24-hour access.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Okay. So that

         10  if in a location, in a basement area for which you

         11  had 24-hour location, but not a doorman building in

         12  Jackson Heights, and you had that ability for the

         13  equipment to be mounted high and for keys or

         14  whatever it is, to give you access, you could end up

         15  using that type of site.

         16                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Yes, we could.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Is that

         18  something that is being looked at additionally --

         19                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Yes, it is.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY:-- That

         21  currently presents some problem?

         22                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Yes, we are looking at

         23  every potential site that we can gain access to and

         24  whether it is in a basement or a laundry room.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Mr. Rosenblum,
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          2  was there anything in Commissioner Dobrin's

          3  testimony that you are not in concert with?

          4                 MR. ROSENBLUM: The only statement I

          5  would make, and I really do want to spend, you know,

          6  our time looking forward in resolving the issue, is

          7  that we believe that all the permits granted to us,

          8  and we did have permits for every one of these

          9  pedestals, were granted to us under Administrative

         10  Code 25-318, which does place the burden, even

         11  within a landmarked district, on the agency issuing

         12  the permit, which would be DOT, to advise Landmarks.

         13  So, I think there was an honest error in the middle

         14  as to the question of who had responsibility. But,

         15  no, there is nothing in his testimony that bothers

         16  me. We intend to work very diligently to remove the

         17  ten pedestals. We understand the concern in the

         18  community and we are working to try to solve it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay. So that the

         20  things that I would take out of his testimony that

         21  would affect you as the franchisee is, these are

         22  never going up in other historic districts, (a).

         23                 (b) that the ones within the Jackson

         24  Heights Historic District, you were making efforts

         25  to get rid of. Now, I didn't like, and I am glad
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          2  Chairman McCaffrey asked it, that you want to move

          3  them within the district, the idea is to get them

          4  out of the district, okay? And I want that very

          5  clear, because we believe, and you heard me ask

          6  Commissioner Dobrin, that he has the power to order

          7  these things removed, and we want him to do that if

          8  these negotiations don't bear fruit. And we are

          9  assuming that based on what he tells us today and

         10  the good faith effort, that these are new bearing

         11  fruit because he understands and Deputy Mayor Lhota

         12  understands that we were right, whether or not they

         13  want to say it or not, that this was a violation of

         14  the law, whether it by omission or comission, and

         15  that you intend to get rid of these, not relocate

         16  them within the district but either put them where

         17  they are not seen within the district, or relocate

         18  them out of the historic district; is that your

         19  understanding?

         20                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Yes, it is.

         21                 To give you an example, the one that

         22  we have a definitive agreement with the owner, we

         23  are able to take the power supply portion of that

         24  pedestal and place that behind the building under a

         25  facade, out of site. So I think that solves
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          2  everybody's concerns.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: In your testimony

          4  you said that the power supply is often on poles.

          5                 MR. ROSENBLUM: That's correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Now, the power

          7  supply part of what these boxes are is the above

          8  ground or is it a below ground twin, because they

          9  sort of work in --

         10                 MR. ROSENBLUM: The power supply must

         11  be above ground.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Do you mean to

         13  tell me that those big things that you have on

         14  sidewalks are matched by things on poles somewhere?

         15                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Well, no, because when

         16  you put it on a pole, what you are able to do is to

         17  take the power supply, which is one of the

         18  components inside of the pedestal, mount that on the

         19  pole, then you take the node which is the other

         20  component and you also mount that on the pole, but

         21  you don't take the whole box and put that up on the

         22  pole.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: And are they on

         24  the same pole, the node and the power supply?

         25                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Yes, they are.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: So, the

          3  equivalent of one of these boxes is hanging from a

          4  pole somewhere in Douglas Manner?

          5                 MR. ROSENBLUM: It is not the

          6  equivalent, no. I wish I had a picture of it. The

          7  power supply is a component within the box, the node

          8  is, I would guess about a three foot by two foot

          9  device that is also within the pedestal. Those are

         10  placed on the pole, but it is not the same visual

         11  appearance as the box that we have, the pedestal

         12  that is on the street.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Well, let me just

         14  say in conclusion that I think you understand that

         15  we buy, getting all parties in the same room, we

         16  clearly want this, you keep saying look to the

         17  future, but I want you to correct the mistake of the

         18  last few months and get the boxes out of the Jackson

         19  Heights Historic District where it is clear they

         20  don't have Landmarks' permission, and we want you to

         21  do that, and we are prepared, I believe, to either

         22  through our oversight capability in our two

         23  subcommittees, or by lawsuit, to sue to get these

         24  things removed by order of the Commissioner. We are

         25  very serious about this and we hope you are too.
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          2                 Commissioner Dobrin says he is

          3  spending a lot of time on this, let's bear some

          4  fruit and let's move these.

          5                 I, for one, and I know you have some

          6  of your engineers here, don't believe that these

          7  couldn't be moved one avenue or two avenues, in

          8  which case you wouldn't have had an issue here, you

          9  would have saved everyone a lot of time, you would

         10  have saved half the City, the rest of the City is

         11  complaining about this and quieted them, but I guess

         12  people thought this was going to go away - it

         13  hasn't, and we are not going to let it go away on

         14  our end. We have told our counsel to look at

         15  options, both on a regulatory basis and on a

         16  litigation basis to make this happen.

         17                 I am happy to hear that you and

         18  Commissioner Dobrin have moved along and will only

         19  give that the time for that seed to germinate, but

         20  we are not kidding, and we want you to understand

         21  that.

         22                 MR. ROSENBLUM: No, we definitely

         23  understand that, and we have been working, as I

         24  said, over the last months, to get these boxes

         25  moved.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: You will give

          3  us progress reports as to how each of these is going

          4  in terms of that?

          5                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Absolutely.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Any other

          7  questions?

          8                 All right, thank you very much.

          9                 MR. ROSENBLUM: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: I now will ask

         11  Sergeant-At-Arms if you will bring up another chair.

         12  We have five individuals.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Can I hold a

         14  vote? My Subcommittee is still open, and we have one

         15  item that I want to hold a vote on, since Council

         16  Member Perkins is leaving, and that would be Land

         17  Use 516, Brooklyn Community Board 2, in Council

         18  Member Fisher's district. Anyone here from DCAS? Do

         19  you want to just tell us what the result is, while I

         20  have a quorum.

         21                 Identify yourself for the record,

         22  please.

         23                 MR. FLEMMING: Good afternoon. My name

         24  is Chris Flemming, I am Director of Strategic

         25  Planning with the Division of Real Estate Services.
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          2                 Councilman Fisher has asked DCAS to

          3  make a commitment that they won't increase agency

          4  allocated on-street parking within a five-block

          5  radius of the proposed Law Department site at 50

          6  Washington Street.

          7                 The Law Department has agreed to

          8  commit to not requesting on-street parking at all in

          9  the area. This site is to be used exclusive for

         10  storage and there are no City employees working at

         11  the facility. A letter from the Law Department

         12  stating such will be forthcoming.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: That's a promise?

         14                 MR. FLEMMING: That's a promise.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay. Clerk,

         16  please call the roll.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Sabini.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         20  Perkins.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Aye.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Abel.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Aye.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of three in

         25  the affirmative, none in the negative with no
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          2  abstentions, the aforegoing items are approved and

          3  referred to the full Committee on Land Use.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Thank you very

          5  much. I will now ask Monica Norris to come forward.

          6  Edwin Westley. Jeffrey Saunders. Jimmy Smith. And

          7  Steve Kulhanek.

          8                 While we do not have the timer on, we

          9  ask that you constrain your comments to three

         10  minutes. Ms. Norris, you will be first.

         11                 MS. NORRIS: Thank you.

         12                 Good afternoon. My name is Monica

         13  Norris, and I am Deputy Counsel to the Queens

         14  Borough President Claire Shulman.

         15                 On behalf of the Borough President, I

         16  would like to thank the Subcommittee and Council

         17  Members John Sabini and Walter McCaffrey, for

         18  holding this hearing.

         19                 I would also like to extend her

         20  apologies for not being able to appear before you

         21  this afternoon.

         22                 The subject of this hearing is an

         23  important quality of life issue which affects the

         24  appearance of our neighborhood.

         25                 This is a particular concern within
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          2  the Jackson Heights Historic District, but the

          3  presence of cable television equipment, cabinets, on

          4  our sidewalk has an impact in neighborhoods

          5  throughout the Borough of Queens.

          6                 The cabinets are part of Time

          7  Warner's upgrade of the City's cable system, and we

          8  appreciate and welcome the improvements in cable

          9  service that they make possible, but these metal

         10  cabinets, which are four feet high and painted a

         11  lime green color do not fit into these

         12  neighborhoods. They are especially inappropriate in

         13  the Borough's historic district.

         14                 We must find a more appropriate way

         15  to house the equipment which is in these cabinets.

         16                 In Manhattan Time Warner made

         17  arrangements with property owners to place this

         18  equipment within commercial and residential

         19  buildings. This allows the cable company the access

         20  it needs, while removing the necessity of placing

         21  these inappropriate structures on the City streets.

         22                 Time Warner did not undertake any

         23  such efforts in Queens, nor did the company contact

         24  local community boards or elected officials before

         25  installing the cabinets on the City streets.
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          2                 In Jackson Heights Time Warner did

          3  not contact the Landmarks Preservation Commission to

          4  determine the requirements for placing such

          5  structures within a historic district.

          6                 Time Warner has argued that under its

          7  franchise agreement with the City, the Department of

          8  Transportation was responsible for contacting the

          9  Landmarks Commission, but the cable company itself

         10  should have realized the historic nature of the area

         11  and located its equipment accordingly.

         12                 But pointing fingers will not

         13  accomplish anything. Instead we must work with Time

         14  Warner to come up with creative and effective

         15  solutions to the problems that its equipment has

         16  caused.

         17                 We have met with Time Warner a number

         18  of times on this issue, and appreciate the company's

         19  agreement to not place any more cabinets until these

         20  questions are resolved. We hope to continue working

         21  with the company to solve these problems.

         22                 In historic districts such as Jackson

         23  Heights, the cable equipment must be removed from

         24  City sidewalks and placed inside buildings. This

         25  should also be the case in other neighborhoods. In
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          2  the limited circumstances where no location is

          3  available, any structures placed on City's sidewalks

          4  should be made attractive so they fit unobtrusively

          5  into the surrounding community.

          6                 In these areas we hope to work with

          7  Time Warner to redesign the cabinets so that the

          8  technical and access needs of the cable company are

          9  satisfied, while the integrity and appearance of our

         10  communities is preserved.

         11                 With some effort and creativity, we

         12  can relocate and redesign these cabinets so that

         13  Queens residents receive quality, state-of-the-art

         14  cable service, while at the same time their

         15  communities and quality of life are preserved.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Thank you. I

         18  don't know if I would really call them cabinets.

         19  That is a nice spin on what is really an

         20  unattractive box. But I appreciate your testimony

         21  and I appreciate the Borough President's efforts in

         22  this regard.

         23                 Mr. Smith, Chairman of Community

         24  Board 3.

         25                 MR. SMITH: Thank you, Council Members
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          2  McCaffrey and Sabini, for getting all of the

          3  interested parties here at one time to address this

          4  issue.

          5                 I am Chairman of Community Board 3,

          6  which includes Jackson Heights, North Corona and

          7  East Elmhurst. The affected area is primarily

          8  Jackson Heights on the cable boxes. I do not have a

          9  prepared statement because we have met several times

         10  on this issue and I think pretty much know what we

         11  are up against here. We have, the primary area is

         12  Jackson Heights, not primarily -- I have heard a lot

         13  today about the historic district, and certainly we

         14  are concerned about taking those boxes out of the

         15  historic district, but there are other members of

         16  our community that these boxes are affecting the

         17  quality of life for Jackson Heights, and I would

         18  like to see something done about that as well.

         19                 We have met with Clair Shulman last

         20  month and she insisted that we do something about

         21  the total -- you talk about ten boxes, but you have

         22  got 26 boxes to deal with.

         23                 If you go along 37th Avenue and park

         24  on those streets, it is very difficult to get out

         25  without banging the side of your door. There is
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          2  graffiti all over them, and they have made

          3  commitments to keep them clean, but it does not

          4  solve our problem.

          5                 We gave Time Warner a list of, I

          6  don't know exactly how many locations, but enough to

          7  cover all of those boxes, where they could go out

          8  and talk with the owners, let them know what we

          9  expect from them and make some arrangements to move

         10  some of those boxes off the street, not just in the

         11  historic district. I must insist on that. Everyone

         12  in that neighborhood wants to maintain a good

         13  quality of life, and people are making serious

         14  efforts to do that.

         15                 If you go up to Jackson Heights, it

         16  is a clean, desirable neighborhood to live, we want

         17  to keep it that way. I believe in my heart and soul

         18  that those boxes can be removed from the entire

         19  community and put in desirable places and to still

         20  have the kind of services, and I am aware of the

         21  fact that with this technological moving today, it

         22  is necessary to make changes. We are open to

         23  changes, but let's do it with the community. We were

         24  not considered at all in this application

         25  whatsoever.
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          2                 As Chairman of the community board,

          3  we reach out to the community, we go through John's

          4  Office, we go through Lafayett's office, we go

          5  through Helen's Office and look at our community and

          6  try to find out those problems that exist to

          7  maintain a quality of life which we want to live for

          8  our total community.

          9                 I am committed to doing that and my

         10  office is committed to doing that, but I am asking

         11  you to insist that we are not just talking about the

         12  ten but we are talking about the 26.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Let me just point

         15  out two things. Since this is a joint hearing, the

         16  aspects of the Landmarks Law is the jurisdiction of

         17  my Subcommittee, Council Member McCaffrey takes care

         18  of the rest of the franchise, so that when it comes

         19  to what we do, we deal with Chairwoman Raab and my

         20  Subcommittee, and while I agree with you we would

         21  like to get them all out everywhere, you know, we

         22  are sort of defending the Landmarks Law on my end of

         23  the table.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: That is why we

         25  are delighted to hear what the Commissioner has
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          2  indicated by way of the broader view in terms of the

          3  efforts of the Administration which would address

          4  the 26.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Right.

          6                 Secondly, the Borough President is

          7  Chair under the City Charter of the Borough Board,

          8  you serve on the Borough Board, Mr. Smith, we serve

          9  on the Borough Board as members of the Borough's

         10  Council Delegation, we heard a lengthy presentation

         11  from Time Warner about the upgrade a number of

         12  months ago, but at no time did anyone say, by the

         13  way, you are going to have to live with these big

         14  ugly things in your -- on your sidewalk, that was

         15  not part of the presentation. And while I believe

         16  that ultimately it is up to the City to police its

         17  own laws, Time Warner is not absolved of errors here

         18  as well, since they were not forthcoming with

         19  information to anybody as to what these things would

         20  look like or where they would be placed, despite the

         21  fact that they had the forum at the Borough Board

         22  that you attended and the Borough President chaired

         23  and that we attend as well. So there is plenty of

         24  blame to go around here.

         25                 MR. SMITH: May I just say one last
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          2  thing?  I am not blaming blame per se, but I believe

          3  if we would have come together in the beginning on

          4  this we could have solved this problem without

          5  coming here today. We wouldn't have to be here

          6  today.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: If we heard it at

          8  the Borough Board before these things ever came in

          9  we would have known that, so, no, you are right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Mr. Westley,

         11  my first question to you is, when are those Mets

         12  tickets for that you have in your pocket?

         13  (laughter.)

         14                 MR. WESTLEY: (Not using the

         15  microphone.) Before I can give you the official part

         16  of my testimony, I hope Mr. Rosenblum wasn't saying

         17  that by accepting three out of the ten, they

         18  rejected seven out of ten.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: No, that is

         20  not the case no. Just push the microphone in.

         21                 MR. WESTLEY: I hope that isn't the

         22  case.

         23                 Thank you for inviting me to

         24  participate in this very important quality of life

         25  issue facing our neighborhoods. I am Ed Westley,
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          2  President of the Jackson Heights Beautification

          3  Group, representing our 25 directors, 400 plus

          4  dues-paying members, and over 2,000 neighbors on our

          5  mailing list.

          6                 I would like to take a little time to

          7  address these green monsters which have invaded our

          8  neighborhood. Time Warner Cable is leading this

          9  invasion force of some 26 green monsters located in

         10  our community along 34th and 37th Avenues, from 72nd

         11  Street to 94th Street.

         12                 An agreement was hammered-out at our

         13  February 19th, 1999 meeting with Time Warner Cable,

         14  thanks to the very good effort of our district

         15  manager Giovanna Reid and Harriet Novet, Vice

         16  President of Public Affairs for Time Warner Cable. I

         17  would like to quote from this letter of

         18  understanding dated February 23rd, 1999.

         19                 "We are seeking creative solutions to

         20  relocating our equipment and working with a view

         21  towards achieving our mutual goals in light of the

         22  special circumstances that surround the landmarked

         23  area of Jackson Heights.

         24                 We expect to meet with you again next

         25  month and update you on our progress."
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          2                 I want to be very clear on this

          3  point. Our agreement with Time Warner Cable was to

          4  relocate all 26 green monsters off the streets,

          5  whether they are within or outside the historic

          6  area.

          7                 Up to this point you might say, well,

          8  what's the problem. The next meeting was held April

          9  12th, 1999, and around this time we began to hear

         10  rumors on the street that Time Warner Cable was not

         11  going to honor their agreement.

         12                 Our purpose in going to the meeting

         13  was to get a progress report from them on removing

         14  the green monsters from our streets. But it became

         15  obvious that we were not on the same page because a

         16  new face appeared on their side of the table. This

         17  was Arthur Goldstein, the lawyers for Time Warner

         18  Cable. He stated his role was to listen to both

         19  sides and come up with an agreement. How could a

         20  house lawyer being paid by Time Warner Cable work

         21  out a fair agreement for the community? Hello!

         22                 So here we are today, four months

         23  after the community board gave its unanimous support

         24  to a resolution which gave our chairman and district

         25  manager authority to take whatever steps necessary
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          2  to remove 26 green monsters from our streets.

          3                 At the May community board meeting, a

          4  new lawyer, Howard Weiss, from Davidoff and Malito,

          5  showed up to give us more jive-talk. Mr. Weiss

          6  subsequently released a letter dated June 15th,

          7  1999, in which he stated Time Warner agrees to

          8  receive suggestions to possible alternate sites from

          9  the Community Board for the power supply pedestals,

         10  the green monsters, in the historic district.

         11                 Then the lawyer in Mr. Weiss took

         12  over, and I quote, "The determination as to whether

         13  any of the proposed alternate sites that we receive,

         14  will be appropriate is subject to the technical and

         15  financial feasibility of completing any such

         16  relocation as well as review by the New York City

         17  Landmarks Preservation Commission." In other words,

         18  Time Warner Cable remains in control.

         19                 The New York City Landmarks

         20  Preservation Commission has been relatively silent

         21  on this matter. If one of my neighbors responded

         22  back to the Commission that he would comply if in

         23  his judgment the resolution was technically and

         24  financially feasible, there is no doubt in my mind

         25  the Commission would act quickly and in a clear
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          2  statement tell my neighbor that they would enforce

          3  compliance.

          4                 As a result of a meeting chaired by

          5  Borough President Shulman, our district manager gave

          6  alternative sites, an alternative site list to Time

          7  Warner Cable. This will be the framework of a

          8  follow-up meeting, scheduled for tomorrow, September

          9  8th, at the Borough President's Office.

         10                 However, faced with Time Warner

         11  Cable's lack of respect for our neighborhood, we

         12  have made battle preparations for a war with Time

         13  Warner Cable to defend our quality of life.

         14                 Let me be a little more specific. The

         15  Jackson Heights Beautification at our June meeting

         16  formulated the following plan.

         17                 - Sponsor a Town Hall meeting and

         18  reach-out to other community groups. This was

         19  accomplished on June 30, 1999.

         20                 - Reach out to Richard Parsons,

         21  President of Time Warner.

         22                 - Initiate a consumer boycott.

         23                 - Contact the Municipal Arts Society

         24  for their support. We have received a copy of their

         25  letter to the New York City Landmarks Commission on
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          2  this subject.

          3                 - Needs to be all 26 boxes, not just

          4  the historic district. Use the State and National

          5  Registered District which is the planned Jackson

          6  Heights community, where all utilities are

          7  underground.

          8                 - Bring the battle to the

          9  neighborhoods of Time Warner's top management.

         10                 - Time Warner Cable needs to feel the

         11  pain which they have inflicted on our neighborhood.

         12                 Thank you for this time and your

         13  attention to speak on behalf of my neighborhood.

         14                 MR. SAUNDERS: Good afternoon to all

         15  of you. I am Jeffrey Saunders, I represent the

         16  Jackson Heights Garden City Society, the Groupa de

         17  Jackson Heights, the Queens Historical Society, the

         18  Queens Borough Preservation League and the New York

         19  City Historic Districts Council.

         20                 Why is this such a visceral issues in

         21  Jackson Heights? Jackson heights is the first

         22  planned garden city built in America. It extends

         23  roughly from 69th Street to the low 90s, from

         24  Roosevelt Avenue to Northern Boulevard.

         25                 The New York City Landmarks
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          2  Preservation Commission has only designated half of

          3  the national registered district. What of the

          4  balance of the planned garden city of Jackson

          5  Heights, there are another 12 to 18 boxes and where

          6  are they going to go? Are they going to be moved out

          7  of the City district into the national district,

          8  which is right across the street? They need to all

          9  be removed from the Jackson Heights registered

         10  district.

         11                 Another point about these despicable

         12  lockers, that they are mostly now empty. In

         13  anticipation of running telephone cables and

         14  equipment through them in the future. So, if they

         15  want to take what has always been an underground

         16  utility, relabel some piece of it as a franchise and

         17  begin putting part of our telephone service above

         18  ground in these sidewalk lockers. This is a public

         19  policy discussion which needs investigation and

         20  prevention.

         21                 This answers the question finally for

         22  you of why are these boxes so big and how come the

         23  equipment that they are putting up on poles in

         24  Douglaston seems to be so small, it is because

         25  two-thirds of the boxes are currently empty awaiting
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          2  this additional underground equipment to be moved

          3  above ground.

          4                 That, of course, is something which

          5  they haven't quite explained just as there were

          6  other issues which they did not quite explain up

          7  front.

          8                 A further point is that if they are

          9  locating boxes and equipment on the exterior of

         10  buildings within the Jackson Heights New York City

         11  district, then they need to be submitting

         12  applications to the Landmarks Commission, for

         13  example, the one which Barry Rosenblum discussed,

         14  that should have been done by application to the

         15  Landmarks Commission, if it was not.

         16                 Time Warner should simply be required

         17  to move them into the basements of adjacent

         18  buildings and homes. If that causes insurmountable

         19  problems with Time Warner, then that is an inherent

         20  indictment that they give upon themselves that they

         21  are ramping out their machinery before it is ready,

         22  before they have come up with socially acceptable

         23  answers to their service needs. They created the

         24  social problem, they need to solve it without

         25  forcing themselves upon us, and bringing in lawyers
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          2  and spinmeisters. Time Warner needs to be stopped at

          3  the gates of Jackson Heights Garden City and other

          4  boxes in Community Board 3.

          5                 Now, in his testimony Barry Rosenblum

          6  said something which really has me very concerned.

          7  "We know, however, that this is not an issue" --

          8  that is the boxes -- "this is not an issue in

          9  Manhattan because of the prevalence of doormen

         10  attended buildings and underground garages in the

         11  Borough afford us an opportunity for secure 24-hour

         12  access. Unlike Queens there is a handful of poles in

         13  Manhattan on which to mount equipment - electrical,

         14  telephone, power or cable, and so historically

         15  Manhattan owners we willing to allow us and others

         16  to install our equipment in their buildings."

         17                 Well, the fact is that historically

         18  Jackson Heights Garden City has had its equipment

         19  mounted, the electrical, telephone, cable and power,

         20  underground as well. And if Time Warner is having

         21  trouble finding building owners who are willing to

         22  allow them into the basement at a fair price, then

         23  the community board has repeatedly told them that we

         24  will be happy to aid them and help them, and indeed

         25  I would be happy to talk to building owners to kind
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          2  of help smooth the way a little bit wherever that

          3  might be helpful.

          4                 So, if the reason for going

          5  underground and in basements in Manhattan is because

          6  there are no poles, well, then, as a planned

          7  community, this is also the case in Jackson Heights.

          8                 Now, I have here -- in closing, I

          9  have here a pen with Mayor Giuliani's signature on

         10  it. The Mayor gave it to me after using it to sign

         11  legislation, the object of which was to encourage

         12  historic appropriateness and civility in Jackson

         13  Heights and throughout New York City. If Time Warner

         14  is not entirely cooperative, perhaps we need special

         15  legislation requiring Time Warner to practice

         16  appropriateness and civility.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Our last

         19  witness, Steve.

         20                 MR. KULHANEK: Thank you. Good

         21  afternoon. My name is Steve Kulhanek, and I am

         22  currently the Chairman of the Landmarks Preservation

         23  Committee of Community Board 3 in Queens. I would

         24  like to thank the Committee, the members of the

         25  Committee, for allowing me to briefly express my
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          2  concerns over the installation of numerous pale

          3  green sheet metal boxes by Time Warner

          4  Communications on sidewalks throughout East

          5  Elmhurst, North Corona and Jackson Heights.

          6                 My first concern is the method by

          7  which Time Warner was granted the necessary permits

          8  to install these boxes. While it may be unclear if

          9  the permits to install the metal boxes were given in

         10  accordance with proper procedures, one fact is

         11  abundantly clear: The communities that were being

         12  impacted were not consulted. We learned about the

         13  installation of this equipment as it mushroomed up

         14  around us. I do not believe it is unreasonable to

         15  expect Time Warner to inform and confer with local

         16  communities prior to installing equipment on our

         17  sidewalks.

         18                 My second concern is the presence of

         19  these boxes within the Jackson Heights Historic

         20  District. Community Board 3 is a proud advocate for

         21  all historic sites encompassed within our

         22  boundaries. It is our responsibility to clearly

         23  state that these boxes are totally inappropriate and

         24  inconsistent with the character of the Jackson

         25  Heights Historic District.
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          2                 These boxes are an affront to the

          3  unique sense of place that the Jackson Heights

          4  historic district was established to protect and

          5  maintain.

          6                 Time Warner is not acting as a

          7  responsible corporate neighbor. To date their

          8  actions can at best be described as insensitive and

          9  at worst arrogant. They have presented us with a

         10  fait accompli and wish to placate the community by

         11  redesigning the boxes. No doubt they believe they

         12  can resolve this issue by painting the boxes

         13  landmark green.

         14                 These boxes are unsightly. They are a

         15  target for graffiti. They are plastered with

         16  handbills. They make it difficult to get in or out

         17  of a car. They offer a convenient spot for the

         18  civically challenged to dump garbage. These boxes

         19  must go.

         20                 I call on you to use your resources,

         21  skills and authority to persuade Time Warner t place

         22  these boxes underground or in basements, as they do

         23  in Manhattan. Perhaps most importantly, I urge you

         24  to evaluate and improve the system by which Time

         25  Warner managed to install these boxes so that this
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          2  can never occur again.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Mr. Sabini.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Thank you. Just

          6  let me raise one issue in your testimony, and that

          7  is that proper procedures weren't followed, and in

          8  fact, one of the key revelations here is that

          9  Commissioner Dobrin said that errors were made, and

         10  that I don't want anyone to think that everything

         11  was followed properly here because it wasn't this

         12  wouldn't have happened, at least in the case of a

         13  historic district. And while we would like to see

         14  more community input into any kinds of street

         15  furniture, the fact of the matter is that there were

         16  rules and regulations in place that were ignored or

         17  somehow slipped through the cracks.

         18                 I am glad that we at least have DoITT

         19  now saying that mistakes were made.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON McCAFFREY: Thank you very

         22  much. There being no other witnesses who have asked

         23  to speak at this time, this meeting is now

         24  adjourned.

         25                 Let me just indicate, however, that
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          2  as Chairman Sabini has indicated, this is an item

          3  that will continue to be before both of our

          4  Subcommittees and it is our hope and trust that the

          5  good word and faith that has been expressed today by

          6  Time Warner to expeditiously address this concern

          7  will in fact come to fruition. Failing that, as you

          8  have indicated we will be back here and it is our

          9  hope to keep this in a collegial fashion.

         10                 But if not, we are prepared on behalf

         11  of our communities, to act with a series of other

         12  measures.

         13                 So, we take you at your good word.

         14  Please act quickly. Thank you.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 2:26 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 7th day of September 1999.
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             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            79

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410
